
 
OFFIC|AL FILE COPY NOT SEF:r~ CUT (Xerox t~ec~sar ~' Copie.~ ~om thi~. coPY ~r~ PI~C"E BACK In FILE) 

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report For the Year Ended December ~1, 109B 

unaer provisions of state law, th~s report is a public document. A copy of the report has been submit- ,'.e~ to the audited, or revie,,~.,ed, entity ap, d other appropriate public offJ,::iais. The repoR is available for public inspection at the Baton Rouge office of the Legislative Audi- tor and, where appropriate, at the office of the parish clerk of court. ~'~lease Date Y-/,/-~',~ 
Prepared by: " Management: Services Martin F. Comer, ,Jr. Management Services Director 



MISSION STATEMENT 
To be one of the best and most respected suppliers of sewer, water, and drainage services in the south-central United States by providing quality, reliable, and cost effective services to our Customers while maintaining fair and ethical treatment of our well-trained and highly motivated employees. 

OUR VALUES Open, honest communication Trust and respect for each other Offering and encouraging education and opportunity to employees Fostering enthusiasm among employees through example of the managers/supervisors Providing direction and planning and encouraging interdepartmental team work Assuring reliability in providing services to customers 

KEY RESULT AREAS Customer Satisfaction Cost Effectiveness Employee Satisfaction Capabilities Improvement through Training 
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Sewerage and Water Board employees again participated in the annual United Way Campaign to raise funds for community services. This year's campaign was hiqighted by the "Flush A Boss' event. 



MARC t4. MORIAL, P,e~nt HENRY A. DILLON, JR., President Pro-Tern 
HAROLD J. GORMAIV Exacutiva Director Board OF NEW ORLEANS 625 ST. JOSEPH STREET NEW ORLEANS, LA., 70165 ~ 585-2190 April 15, 1996 

TO: THE HONORABLE PRESIDENT AND MEMI~ERS OF THE SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS Mesdames and Gentlemen: We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans for the year ended December 31, 1995. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests solely with the Sewerage and Water Board. It is our belief that the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and the results of operations of the Board's Enterprise and Pension Trust Funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Sewerage and Water Board's financial activities have been included. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four (4) major sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical and Supplemental. The Introductory Section includes the transmittal letter and listings of the officers, members, and coE~ittees of the Board of Directors. This section also includes the Board's organizational chart and a reproduction of the 1994 Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The Financial Section includes the independent auditors" report, along with the general purpose financial statements and the accompanying notes. The combined and individual fund statements for the Enterprise and Pension Trust Funds are included. The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally in a multi--year presentation. Additional information relative to the Sewerage and Water Board's operations is included in a Supplemental Section. The Sewerage and Water Board meets the criteria for classification as an "other stand-alone government" as described in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement: No. 14. The reporting entity includes the Enterprise Fund and the Pension Trust Fund. ~he Enterprise Fund is composed of three (3) independent systems: Water; Sewerage and Drainage. The Sewerage subdivision created and Water Board of New Orleans is a political in 1899 by Louisiana State Statutes. The Board is 
] Members of who Bolrd: TRO V A, CARTER ~ HENRY A, DILLON, JR. ~ 8ENJAMIN L, EDWARDS, SR, ~ NORMAN IV. FRANCIS ~ CAROL YN J, HARRIS ~ WILLIAM A, HOL TON, JR CLARENCE J. JUPITER ~ /CA 7HERINE RUSSO MARALDO * MARC H. MORIAL ~ JAMES M, SINGLETON ~ STAFEOP.D R TUREAUD, SR. ~ PEGG Y WILSON ~ MARY K. ZERVIGON "An ~#ua/ OppomunlW ~ployer * 



charged with construction, operation, and maintenance of Water, Sewerage and Drainage Systems for the City of New Orleans. By agreement, approximately 2550 acres of adjourning Jefferson Parish is served by the Board's drainage facilities for which Jefferson Parish pays its pro rata share of expenses. In addition, the Board provides sewage services to the businesses, the majority of which are restaurants, located in the west end section of the City near the Lakefront and water service to the Plaquemines Parish Industrial Park. The Sewerage and Water Board was established as a "special board" operating independently of City government. The Mayor of New Orleans serves as the President of the Board of Directors which is composed of representatives of the City Council and the Board of Liquidation, City Debt as well as other mayoral appointees as designated by the State statutes. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK The Board's service area includes the Civil Parish of Orleans in the state of Louisiana and covers 364 square miles. Based on the 1990 census, the population was 498,938. Major industries include tourism, oil and gas, transportation and services which include hotel, health and other services such as legal, education, and entertainment. The tourism industry in New Orleans resumed its long-term growth trend in the third quarter of 1995. This was detailed in the January, 1996 issue of the Metropolitan Re~ort: Economic Indicators for the New Orleans Area (UNO Report) published by the Division of Business and Economic Research of the University of New Orleans. As a major industry, New Orleans tourism activity will continue on a healthy growth path. This is due in part to ongoing state and local tourism promotional efforts and exceptionally strong convention attendance. The capacity of hotel rooms will significantly increase for the first time since the 1984 World's Fair because of several new hotels and hotel expansions that are expected to be completed in the next two years. Consequently, this will increase employment in hotels and bars and restaurants, the two direct employment indicators of the tourist sector. Employment in this area is expected to increase by over 2,600 workers in the next two years. The service industry is actually the New Orleans Area'e largest sector of employment. It currently is 31.3% of total employment in the area and has been on the increase since the oil bust of the early 1980's. The service industry also aided the local economy by adding 1,300 jobs. In addition to the growth anticipated in services, the oil and gas industry is also expected to have a significant economic impact. Increases in energy prices and the development of deep water, rigs in the near term is e~~ected to add 30 rigs by 1997, which would make the rig count the highest since the first quarter of 1986. This growth should result in increased oil and gas activity which will positively impact the local economy. While transportation businesses in the area have downeized or 



relocated, New Orleans is quickly becoming a cruise ship point of embarkation. Based on the data in the UNO Report, the increase in passenger services is expected to boost employment in transportation. Other signs of positive market trends include the increase in the number and value of housing units. The recent decline in interest rates is expected to continue to increase housing activity. Local initiatives that have aided our economic outlook include those of the Port and Metro Vision. The Port will be trying to regain its status as a top trade port to Mexico and Latin America with the help of New Orleans' public/private partnership Metro Vision. In 1995, Metro Vision initiated a program that aggressively markets to firms domestically and in Mexico and Latin America the benefits of the New Orleans region. The program promotes the city's ports and import/export trade while paring local firms with international firms. Metro Vision's goal is to increase the volume in trade by $2 billion annually and add I0,000 jobs to the local economy by the end of the decade. After the first quarter of 1995, the program showed a 32 percent increase in Latin American trade making the Port the second largest port to Latin American trade. MAJOR INITIATIVES The Board budgeted approximately $47,209,000 for capital improvements in 1995. In order to modernize, improve, and expand our operational capabilities, the following major projects were undertaken. Addition to the Engineering/Laboratory Building at the Carrollton Water Purification Plant Renovation of Turbine #3 Improvements to the Algiers Water Purification Plant Upgrade of Multi Hearth Incinerator Installation of new 24" transmission main to increase water supply to Central Business District Repairs to and/or replacement of equipment throughout the power, drainage, sewerage, and water systems These projects will continue to ensure that the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans is able to meet the needs of the City by supplying operational electric power through modern and reliable operating facilities. The Board has continued its conm~itment to the future by embarking upon implementation of the Water Quality Master Plan and'acceptance of the Power Study. Engineering design is underway for pretreatment facilities at the Algiers Water Purification Plant and complete refurbishment of the treatment basins at the Carrollton Water Purification Plant. Studies are underway to evaluate additional real estate requirements necessary to accommodate expanded Purification 



Facilities and a new Power Generation System to allow for future conversion to 60 hertz power. Numerous major improvements are ongoing as part of the Sewerage and Water Board's five (5) year $491,754,000 Capital Program, including projects such as additional clarifiers at the West Bank Sewage Treatment Plant, and completion of additions to Drainage Pumping Station ii, modifications to "C" basins at the Carrollton Water Treatment Plant, restorations to existing gravity sewer mains and renovation of a turbine at the main water plant. Future projects include additional 2500 CFS of pumpage at Drainage Pumping Station I. In addition to our capital improvement projects, significant accomplishments during 1995 included the installation and implementation of two new software systems. In May 1995 our new payroll system was successfully implemented and on January l, 1996 our new financial system was brought on-line. Various departments have contributed substantial amounts of time ~nd effort to implement these new systems. We anticipate the installation of additional components of the financial system in 1996 to further improve our data processing systems and increase operational and reporting efficiency. 
Management of the Sewerage and Water Board is responsible for designing and maintaining an internal control structure sufficient to safeguard the Board's assets against loss, theft or misuse and to ensure the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these goals are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (i) the cost of internal controls should not exceed the benefits expected to be derived and (2) the valuation of coste and benefits require the exercise of judgement by management. The Enterprise Fund's Water and Sewerage Systems are financed by user fees. The unique characteristics of the services provided by the Drainage System of New Orleans requires the use of Enterprise Fund accounting in order to obtain a meaningful measure of the cost of providing the services and capital maintenance. The Drainage System is financed by revenues from the three (3) mill, six (6) mill and nine (9) mill ad valorem taxes which are restricted exclusively for drainage services. Budgetary Control: The Sewerage and Water Board maintains an internal budgetary control through the preparation and monitoring of an annual operating and capital budget for the Water, Sewerage, and Drainage funds. Monthly budget reports are provided to department level managers to assist them in their fiscal responsibilities. , General Operations= An operating expense increase of 1.0% from 1994 to 1995 can be attributed primarily to increased expenses for transmission and distribution, customer accounts, administration and general, maintenance of general plant, depreciation and provision for 



self insurance claims. The primary areas of significant increase are depreciation and the provision for self insurance claims. The increase in depreciation expense reflects the increases in the Board's capital improvement initiatives in the past five years. As the capital projects are completed, the costs are then depreciated over the estimated useful life of the improvements. The increase in the provision of claims varies annually based on the number of claims, lawsuits and workers' compensation cases. A graphic summary of the Enterprise Fund revenues and expenses is presented at the end of the transmittal letter. Pension Trust Fund Operations: The contributions to the Pension Trust Fund are based on annual actuarial valuations. The Sewerage and Water Board continues to fund the paydown of the total unfunded liability over an eight (8) year period. Debt Administration: The Board of Liquidation, City Debt has responsibility for the administration of the Board's debt. Drainage debt service payments are supported by ad valorem tax collections, while user fees are used to provide debt service for the Water System's bonds. The Water System's net operating revenues were adequate to provide the 130% debt service coverage required by bond indenture. The Sewerage and Water Board's bonds outstanding as of December 31, 1995 totaled $35,370,000. Cash Management: Cash temporarily idle of the Enterprise Fund during the year was invested in commercial bank certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, and U.S. Treasury Bills. Investment income on these idle funds was $7,813,226. Risk Management: The Sewerage and Water Board is self-insured for hospitalization, workers" compensation, unemployment compensation, and general liability losses and claims. Through aggressive claims management, pro-active employee education and safety training, we continue to see improving results in Workers" Compensation, notably in the number of lost work days per case. Our in house legal counsel significantly defending litigation claims as well as our Risk who monitors our workers" compensation claims. our claim liability as of December 31, 1995, was 
assists the Board in Management Department The total estimate of $15,994,567. Another notable trend in Risk Management has been the continued reduction in our number of vehicular accidents. We have also seen reductions in our total general liability claim payments due to an emphasis on quick response, increased on-site inspections, and more thorough investigations. Other Information: State Statutes and covenants governing outstanding bond issues require an annual audit of the Board's financial records by independent certified public accountants. The accounting firm of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP and its subcontractor, Bruno and Tarvalon CPA's, were selected by the Board. 



 

The independent auditors' report on the general purpose financial statements and individual fund statements are included in the Financial Section of the report. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local goverrnnent financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual report whose contents conform to program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one (i) year only. The Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last thirteen (13) consecutive years. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certification of Achievement Program requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA. Acknowledgements: The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated services of the Board's Management Services Administration, particularly the Accounting and Printing Departments. We would like to express our sincere appreciation to all who assisted and contributed in its preparation, especially Lori Pizzuto, who was our previous Utility Financial Administrator. We would also like to welcome David Soublet, who assumed this position effective April i, 1996. We also wish to thank the members of the Board for their interest and support in our efforts to achieve greater fiscal efficiency and accountability. 
Yours very truly, 

Executive Director 

Management Services Director 
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REVENUES by Source 1995 

General 11.09~~ Customer Accounts 2.25% 
l)ro~Mon for Claims 3.35~ Payroll Relat 11.89% 

EXPENSES by Source 1995 
Trealmenl Power & Pumping lnlerest Expense 10.46t~ 13.46% 2.46% 

Dislribulion 14.11% 
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"[he Merit Compact Training Program for Sewerage and Water Board employees helped the City of New Orleans to win the Employer of the Year Award lor the New Orleans Chapter of the American Society lor Training and Development. More than 1400 employees attended sessiorl-.~ conducted by the S&WB Training Department on "Perfecting Your Personal Sytie" and "Teamwork.' 

The Sewerage and Water Board's H20 Toastmasters Club received recognition when two of its members won awards in the 1995 "roastmaster's International Area 15. District 68 Contest. Lynn Cobette won first place in the Speaker Evaluation Competition and Emanuel Lain placed third in the Speaker Competition. 



KPMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans. LA 70139-3599 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans as of and for the year ended December 31, 1995, and the individual fund financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financ~a] statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Sewerage and ~ater Board of New Orleans as of Decembnr 31, 1995, and the results of operations and cash flows for the year ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the individual fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, and the result of operations and cash flows of such funds for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, dated March 29, 1996, on our consideration of structure and a report, dated March 29, ]996, on regulations. 
we have also issued a reportt the Board's internal control its compliance with laws and 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 1995 general purpose financial statements and on the 1995 and 1994 individual fund financlal statements taken as a whole. The accompanying financlal information listed as supplementary information in the accompanying table on contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose and individual fund financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applled in the audit of the general purpose and individual fund flnancial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financlal statements and each of the individual~fund financial statements taken as a whole. 
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NOTES TO 6ENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



SKHKSAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1995 and 1994 
I - Sum~srv of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies s The major operation of the Sewerage Board) is providing water, sewerage New Orleans (City). and Water Board of New Orleans (the and drainage services for the City of 

In accordance with the Louisian8 Revised Statutes (LRS) 33:4096 and 4121, the Board has the authority to establish the water and sewerage rates to charge to its customers. The rates are based on the actual water consumed and on the costs Of maintenance and operation of the water and sewerage systems, including the costs of improvements and replacements. The collections of water and sewerage rates are to be used by the Board for the maintenance and operation Of the systems, the cost of iz~rovemsnts, betterments, and replacements, end to provide for the payments of interest and principal on the bonds payable. The Board has also been given the authority to levy and collect various tax millages which are used for the operation end maintenance of the drainage operations. All excess revenues collected are made available for capital development of the system. The proceeds of the rate collections and tax millnges are invested in such investments as authorized by the LRS. These investments ere reflected in the co,~Ined balance sheet, as "restricted assets," as they are restricted to the purposes as described above. The Board is composed of thirteen members, including the Mayor of the City, the two Counoilmembers-at-Large, and one District Councilmember selected by the City Council, two members of the Board of Liquidation and seven citizens appointed by the Mayor. The appointed members of the Board serve staggered nine year terms. The Board's accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to utilities and to governmental units. The following is e summary of the more significant policies. (a) In conformity with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's definition of a reporting entity, the Board includes an enterprise fund and a pension trust fund for financial reporting purposes. The Board is considered a reporting entity based on the following criteria: (a) Responsibility for surpluses/deficits. The Board is solely responsible for its surpluses/deficits. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes, no other governmental unit is responsible for the Board's deficits or has a claim to its surpluses. The Board's 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF llEM ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STAT~IENTS (Continued) 
1 - es {Continued 

(c) 

sheet. Fund equity is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings. The operating state,ants present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. The Beard maintains one proprietary fund type - the enterprise fund. The enterprise fund is used to account for operations (a) that are flnancedand operated in a manner similar to private business enterprlses--where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be flnan0od or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance. The presentation of the financial statements of the enterprise fund follows the format race--ended by the National Assooiation of Regulatory Utility Commissioners {NARUC). The balance sheet arrangement for a utility reflects the relative importance of the various accounts. "Property, plant and equipment" is the first major category on the asset side, and long-term capitalization categories such as fund equity are listed first on the liability side. Current assets and current liabilities are assigned n ~elatively less i~ortant position in the center of the balance sheet, rather than being placed first as in the balance sheets of con~nercial and industrial enterprises. 
The fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held by the Board in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The Board maintains one fiduciary fund type - the pension trust fund. The measurement focus of the pension trust fund is the sa~s as that of the enterprise fund. The pension trust fund is used to account for the activity of the Board's employee retirement plan. The Board applies all applicable FASB p before November 30, pension trust fund with or contradict 

ts issued on or 1989 in accounting for its enterprise fund and operations unless those pronouncements conflict GASB pronouncements. 

Investments are stated at cost or a~ortlzed cost, except for investments in the deferred compensation plan which are reported at market value. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FIN~J|CIAL ST&TEMEHTS (Continued) 
1 (z) Inventory of supplies is stated at tile lower of coat or market. Cost is detarm/ned by the first-in, first-out method. (F) Property, Plant and EQuipment Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost. The cost of additions include contracted work, direct labor, materials and allocable cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Interest is oi~italized on fixed assets acquired and/or constructed with tax axen~t d~hbt, Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed frem the accounts and any resulting gain or loss i8 recognized in revenue for the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operations as incurred and significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. Deduction is made for retirements resulting from renewals or betterments. Depreciation on assets acquired through contributions is charged to fund equity - revenue invested in water, sewerage and drainage system. (G) Vacation (annual leave} and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when eaz'nod, Annual leave is accrued at the rate of! .6923 of a workday for each hi-weekly accrual period for all employees on the payroll as of December 31, 1978. En~loyees hired after that date earn leave at a rate of .5 per bi-weakly pay period. All employees receive three bonus days each year for five through nine calendar years of continuous ssrvice~ six bonus days each year for ten through fourteen years; nine bonus d~ys each year for fifteen through nineteen years; and, twelve days for twenty or more years of continuous !errata. Civil Servics's policy permits employees a limited amount of earned but unused annual leave which will be paid to employees upon separation fro~ the Board. The amount shall not exceed ninety days for employees hired before January I, 1979, and forty-flve days for employees hired after December 31, 1978. Sick leave is accumulated on a bi-weskly basis by all employees hired prior to December 31, 1978 at an accrual rats of .923 of a workday. For employees hired subsequent to December 31, 1978, the accrual rate is .5 of a workday for each hi-weekly period, plus a two day bonus each year for employees with six through fifteen calendar years of continuous service, and seven bonus days each year for employees with sixteen or more calendar years of continuous service. Upon separation from the Board, an employee can elect to convart~nused eiok leave for retirement credits or cash. The conversion to cash id daterILinad by a rate ranging from one day of pay for five days of leave,for the let through the 100th leave day to one day of pay for one day of leave for all day8 in excess of the 400th leave day. The total liability for ttncoverted sick leave as of December 31, 1995 is approximately $13,200,000. The amount included in the balance sheet as of December 31, 1995 is $3,979,939 which represents the converted sick leave because virtually ell employees convert their sick leave to cash. The amounts for compensated absences include the 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
I - Summary of Siunificant Accountinq Policies (Continued) salary cost as well as certain salary rlilated costs, such as the Board's share of social security expense. 
The Board funds the accrued pension cost: for its contributory pension plan which covers substantially all employees. Annual costs are actuarially computed using the entry age normal cost method. (I) Drainage System ~ n 1903, the Legislature gave the Board control of and responsibility for the City's drainage system. The Drainage System wes established as a department of the enterprise fund to account for the revenues from three-mill, six-mill and nine-mill ad valoremte~ae designated exclusively ~or drainage services. These revenues have been supplemented by inspection and license fees collected by the Board. There exists a potential for additional financing by additional user service charges. Expenditures from the system are for the debt service of three-mill, slx-mill and nine-mill tax bonds and drainage related operation, maintenance and construction~ Although not presently financed byussr charges related to direct usage, the usual revenue source for an enterprise fund activity, the financing by dedicated millages or properties serviced, and the unique character of the services provided by the drainage system of the City, require enterprise fund accotu~tlng to provide meaningful measure~ent of cost of services and capital maintenance of the system. Additionally, because of the peculiar geography of the City, the provision of drainage sez~ice is essential for the operation of water and sewerage systems. The drainage system operatlon and maintenance expenses include costs directly associated with the provision of drainage services as well as substantial allocated costs resulting from utilization of co~on resources such as administrative services, maintenance, equipment, and power generation and transmission. (J) The Board is self-insured for general liability, worker's compensation, unemployment compensation and hospitalization benefits and claims. The accrued liability for the various types of claims represents an estimate by management of the eventual lobs on the claims arising prior to year-end, including claims incurred and not yet reported. (K) Contributed Capital Contributions from developers and others, and receipts of Federal, State and City grLnts for acquisition of property, plant and equipment are recorded as contributed capital in fund equity. (L} Bond Issue Cost and Reflnanclnq Gains (Losses} / Costs related to issuing bonds are capitalized and amortized based upon the methods used to approximate the interest method over the life of the bonds. Beginning with fiscal years 1994 and thereafter, gains and losses associated with refundings and advance refundings are being deferred and amortized based upon the methods used to approximate the interest method over the life 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
1 - 

2 - 

of tha new bonds or tha remaining term on any rafttndad bond, whichever im shorter. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, only cash on hand and on deposit at financial institutions are considered to be oash squiYalents. Certificates of deposits, treasury bills and other securities are considered investments. 
The following are the components of the Board's cash and investments at December 31, 1995: 
Cash: Enterprise fund Pension trust fund 
Certificates of deposit Deferred compensation mutual fund Investments: Enterprise fund Pension trust fund 

Camh Certificates of deposits Total carrying ~mount of deposits 

$ 1,074,342 6a369 220,653 $ 1,294,995 6,369 II080fTll 220t653 1,301,364 100,098,974 100,098,974 274,420 274,426 
94r372,35~ ~95f453f066 
Unrestricted $ 1,080,711 

21,043,842 21,043,842 94,372,355 

$ 220,653 I00,098.974 $ 1,301,364 ~00,098,974 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOA~) OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contlnued) 
2 - Cash and Certificates of Deposit - At year-end, the bank balances of the Board's cszh totalled $4,000,07~ and csrtifloates of dspomit totalled $100,098,974. of the cash bank balance, $246,786 is covered by federal depository insurance. The remalningamotmt of the Board's cash bank balances and all csrtiflcatss of deposit were entirely covered by collateral held by custodial agents of the financial institutions in the name of the Board. Investments - Statutes authorize the Board to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, commercial paper rated A-I by Standard & Poor's Corporation or P-I by Moody's C~rcial Paper Record, bankers' acceptances and repurchase agreements. In addition, the pension trust fund is authorized to invest in corporate bonds rated A or better by Standard & Poor Corporation or AAA or better by Moody's Investors Service, and equity sscuritisz. The Board's investments at December 31, 1995 are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk asz~nsd by the Board at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or securities which are held by the Board or its agents in the Board's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments with the securities held by the ootultsrparty's trust department or agent in the Board's name. Category 3 includes tulinsured and unregistered investments where the securities are hs~d by the cotmtsrparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the Board's name. 
Enterprise Fund: U.S. Government Securities and Instrumentalities U.S. Government Securities and Instrumentalities Repurchase Agreements Deferred Compensation Mutual Fund 
Pension Trnst Fund: Money Market Corporate Bonds U.S. Goverrunent Agency U.S. Government Securities U.S. Government Insured Equltiss 

CARRYING MARKET VALUE 
$ 838,682 $ 842,100 19,955,160 250,000 274,428 ~21;318;270 $ 3,537,161 18,4!;8,047 18,580,411 11,071,740 2,355,076 40a361a920 

20,035,583 250,000 274,428 ~21r402f191 $ 3,537,161 19,119,057 19,390,057 11,346,336 2,443,130 50,358,533 
Az of December 31, 1994, the Board's investments of $22,574,417~in the enterprise fund and $84,578,647 in the pension trust fund had market values of $22,494,615 and $83,083,377, respectively. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMLq~TS (Continued) 
3 - t Pension sc 

At December 31, the PTF membership consisted of: 
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them Current employees: Vested Nonvested 

Total 

1995 1994 
57__0 
742 854 lt596 

56~ 
742 859 1,609 

The benefit provisions were established by action of the Board in 1956 in accordance wlthLoulslana statutes. The Board retains exclusive control over the plan through the Pension Committee of the PTF. Effective January I, 1996, the plan is qualified under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(u) and thus is tax exempt. The plan provides for retirement benefits as well as death and dlsabillty benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service. ~mployaes who retire at or after age sixty-two with ten years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable biweekly for 1lie, in an amount equal to two percent of their average compensation for each year of credited service up to ten years, increasing by (1) one-half percent per year for service years over ten years, (2) an addltional one-half percent par year for service years over twenty years and (3) an additlonal one percent per year for service years over thirty years, for a maximum of four percent for each year of credited service. Average compensation is the average annual earned compensation less $1,200 for the period of thlrty-slx successive months of service during which the employee's compensation was the highest. Employees with thirty years or more of credited service may retire at or after age flfty-flve without a reduction in benefits. Employees may retire prior to age slxty-two and/or without thirty of service with n reduction of three percent for each year of age below the age of sixty-two if~n employee has reached age sixty with not less than ten years of service or a reduction of two percent for each year of age below age flfty-flve if an employee has n minimum of thirty years creditable service to the Board. ~f an employee leaves covered employment or dies before three years of credited service, the accumulated employee contributions plus related investment earnings are refunded to the employee or designated beneficiary. The retirement allowance for retirees over age slxty-two is subject to n cost of living adjustment each January 1, provided that the member retired on or after January I, 1984. 



SEWERAGE AND HATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE~IENTS (Continued) 
3 - ion P The adjustment is based on the increase in the Consumer Price Index for all urban wage earners published by the U.S. Department of Labor, but is limited to an annual maximum of two percent on the first $I0,000 of initial retirement benefits. Effective September 23, 1993, employers may transfer credit between the Board's plan and the City of Sew Orleans retirement system with full credit for vested service. Fundino Status and Proaress 

The pension benefit obligation is determined annually as a part of an actuarial valuation. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the investments of present and future assets of seven percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of five percent per year compounded annually, and (c) pre- and post- retirement mortality based on 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table. 
Pension benefit obliaation Retirees and beneficiaries, including terminated employees not yet receiving benefits Active msmberst Accumulated employee contributions including allocated investment income Employer financed ~ vested Employer financed - nonvested Total pension benefit obligation 

1995 
$ 46,851,579 
12,060,092 44,921,736 9a510t269 113,343,676 Nat assets available for benefits; at cost (market values $107,098,004 1995; $83,857,092, 1994) 95,275,747 Unfunded pension benefit obligatlon 

1994 
$ 44,894,576 
11,069,277 39,847,184 8,939,733 104,750,770 
85,352,362 191398f408 

The Board and its employees are obligated under plan provisions to make all required contributions to the plan. The required contrlbutlona are actuariallydetermined and include current service costs end amortlzatlon of 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
3 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued 

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarially determined employer contribution requirement are the same as those used to compute the pension benefit obligation. The actuarially determined contribution requirement for the Board is 16.85 percent and for employees is 4.0 percent. The actual Board's and employee's contributions (including contributions for transferred employees from other pension plans) for years ended 1995 and 1994 were $5,206,407 and $5,130,380 and $1,399,273 and $1,302,051, respectively, and were made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements computed through the actuarial valuations performed at December 31, 1995 and 1994. These total contributions consisted of the followingl 
Normal service costs Amortization of unfunded actuarial liability Total contributions 
Normal service costs Amortization of unfunded actuarlal liability Total contributions 
Trend Information 

1995 $2,644,701 
Percentage of covered Payroll 8.28% _3,960,979 12.394 

1994 $2,449,067 
Percentage of covered Payroll 8.124 3,983,364 13.204 

Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Ten-year trend information is included as listed in the table of contents. For the years ended in 1995, 1994 and 1993, net assets available for benefits were sufficient to fund 84.1, 81.5 and 78.2 percent, respectively, of the plan's pension benefit obligatlon. Unfunded pension benefit obligation represented 56.6, 64.3 and 73.3 percent of the annual covered payroll for current covered employees for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. In addition, for the years ended 1995, 1994 and 1993, the Board's contributions to the PTF, as made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements, were 16.3, 17.0 and 16.3 percent, respectively, of annual coveredpayroll. Employee contributions for the years ended 1995, 1994 and 1993, as made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements, were 4.4, 4.0 and 3.6 percent, respectively, of annual covered payroll. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEPDENTS (Continued) 
4 - nt Property, plant and equipment consisted of the followingz 
Water Department Property, plant and equipment in services Real estate rlghts Power and pumping stationsz Buildings Machinery Distribution systems Connections and meters Fuel o11 tanks Power transmissions General plant items Buildings 

1995 
$ 2,898,138 $ 2,898,138 42,054,503 85,013,261 94,455,099 22,332,279 138,377 6,839,998 45,989,627 2r959t970 

40 78 95 24 6 42 
658 299 191 576 211 792 550 
938 847 568 836 838 402 827 2t959r970 Total property, plant and equipment in service 302,681,252 294,140,364 Add! property, plant and equipment in progress 23t000,059 Total property, plant and equipment 325,681,311 314,042,134 T.~ass| accumulated depreciation 114,991,237 106,521,133 Nat property, plant and equipment - water department ~210,690,074 
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57 years 40 years 75 years 50 years 50 years 50 years 12 years 25 years 



SEWERAGE AND %i&TER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCZ~L 8TA~B (Continued) 
4 - 

1995 -- i~94 Useful Lives 
Property, plant and equipment in service: Real estate rights $ 878,916 Power and pumping stations: Buildings Machinery Sawer Houma co.actions power transmission Treatment plantl General plant items Buildings 

18.353.764 19,749,842 91,382,941 10,903.644 4,529,913 82,848,519 34,828,836 1,336,~71 

878,916 
17,619,275 19,322,471 91,276,343 10,914,344 4,507,146 81,719,519 32,562.074 ir336.971 Total property, plant and equipment in service 264,813,547 260,137,459 Add: property, plant and equipment in progress 58t102,372 Total property, plant and equipment 322,915,719 309,064.523 Laps: accumulated depreciation Net property, plant and equipment - sewerage department 

57 yaars 40 years 75 years 50 years 50 years 50 years 12 years 25 years 



SEWERAGE AND HATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
4 - 

Property, plant and equipment in service: Real estate rights $ 3,582,588 $ 3,582,558 Power and pumping stations: Buildings Machinery Canals Sub-surface drain Power tranemleelon General plant items Buildings 
85,230,739 76,936,470 186,257,943 8,756,790 10,224,992 28,629,476 21584t27~ 

81,472,163 73,848,677 177,082,524 8,756,790 9,903,853 26,313,168 , 2a5841271 Total property, plant and equipment in service 402,203,269 383,544,034 Add: property, plant and equipment in progress 41t823t72~ 51,579,611 Total property, plant and equipment 444,026,992 435,123,645 Less: accumulated depreciation Net property, plant and equipment - drainage department 
8211421972 74,272,235 
361,884,020 . 360r851m410 

Total property, plant and equipment 1,092,624,022 1,058,230,302 LoBe: accumulated depreciation 286m167137~ 263,313,989 Net property, plant and equipment - all departments 

57 years 40 years I00 years 75 years 50 years 12 yearm 25 years 

Interest capitalized in 1995 and 1994 is immaterial to the total in property, plant and equipment. 



SEWERAGE AID WATER BOARD OF HEW O~8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued ) 
5 -- CUB 

6 - 
? - 

Cust~sr receivables at December 31, 1995 and 1994 consist of the following: 
1995 
1994 
Water sewer 
Water Sewer 

Customer Accounts $ 8,250,814 4,329t290 
Allowance for Do~L~tful Accounts $2,509,181 1.519.028 $5,741,633 2,810.262 

$ 8,617,331 4,389,740 $2,738,872 Ir400,47~ $5,878,459 2.989,267 
In accordance with the terms of an agreement in principle with the City of New Orleans, the Board and the City agreed to offset $2,098,687 {net of uneaEned discount $285,696) owed by the City to the Board at the rate Of $200,000 annually in lleu of civil service charges through 2009. 
The following is a summary of changem in contributed capital by souroe| Balance 
Contributed: Municipality $ 8,868,396 Developsrm and others 65,277,332 Federal and State 56,226m539 

Balance 
Contributed: Municipality $ 8,868,396 Developers and others 64,848,110 Federal and State 56.226a~39 429,222 

Balanoe De~ember 31. 1995 
$ 8,868,396 65,675,527 5~.226.539 ~130r770r462 Balance 
$ 8,868,396 65,277,332 ~.226.~39 



BEWER&OZ AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATD4ENT8 (Continued) 
Bonds payable consisted of the followings 
6 9/109 to 79 water revenue bonds, sorlas 1986 due in annual principal installments ranging frc4n $435,000 to $2,405,800; final payment due December I, 2003 $11,855,000 $14,240,000 6 9/109 to 7% drainage system bonds, series 1986 A, due in annual p~.ncipal instnllmentm ranging iro~ $2,720,000 to $2,960,000; final payment due December i, 1997 5,680,000 0,165,000 
6 9/109 to 7% drainage system bonds, series 1986 B, due in annual principal installments ranging fro~ $3,140,000 to $3,600,000; final payment due December I, 1998 I0,I00,000 13,025,000 
5.05% to 5.159 drainage system bonds, series 1994, dun in annual principal installments ranging from $815,000 to $1,140,000; final payment due November I, 2003 
Losms current maturities 
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35,370,000 43,950,000 9,080,000 $261290(000 8a580,000 $35.370,000 



$K~rEI~OE AND WATER I~OARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTZS TO FIN~C'IkL 8TATDIEFfS (Continued) 
8 - Bonds Pavab The annual requirements to~ortiza all bonds payable as of December 31, 1995 including interemt payments of $6,710,730, are as follows: Year Revenue Bonds __TTaxBonds Total 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001-2003 

$ 3,232,445 2,996,500 2,258,050 2,274,850 2,296,850 1,600,550 
$ 8,163,790 8,218,708 5,053,558 1,196,808 1,195,055 __/3,593,550 

$11,396,243 11,215,208 7,311,608 3,471,658 3,491,905 . 5,194,108 
The indentures under which these bonds were issued provide for the establishment of restricted funds for debt service as follows: 1. Debt service funds are required for the payment of interest and principal on the revenue and tax bonds. Monthly deposits on revenue bonds are required to be made into this fund from operations in an amount equal to 1/6 of the interest falling due on the next interest payment date, and an amount equal to 1/12 of the principal falling due on the next principal payment date. All debt service funds are adnLinistered by the Board of Liquidation. The raqulredamount to be accumulated in this fund was $273,214 and $277,427 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, raspactively~ the accumulated balance st Deceu~)sr 31, 1995 and 1994 was $538,741 and $562,438, respectively. 2. A debt service reserve is required for an amount equal to but not less than fifty percent of the aunount required to be credited in said m~nth to the debt service fund until there shall be accumulated in the debt service reserve account the largest amount required in any future calendar year to pay the principal and interest on outstanding bonds, except for the water and drainags 9 m/ll tax bonds. The water and drainage 9 mill tax bonds require an amount equal to the largest amount required in any future calendar year to pay the principal of and interest on outstanding bonds. There is no debt service reserve required for the drainage 6 mill tax bonds. The required amount to be accumulated in this fund was $10,246,845 and $10,627,600 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively; the accumulated baAance at Deoember 31, 1995 and 1994 was $10,247,025 and $11,315,483, respectively. The net operating revenues of the Water Department of the Board for the year ended December 31, 1995 were adequate to ~et the bond indenture required debt service coverage of 130 percent. The Board is in co~~pliance with the raquire~nents of its long-term debt agreements at December 31, 1995. The statutory li~it of tax bonds at December 31, 1995, is $86,000,000 providing a debt margin for tax bonds of $62,485,000. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS I~OTE8 TO FZNAI4C~AL STATEMX~TS (Continued) 
9 - 

10 - 
11 - 

In August 1986, the Board defaaead water and sewer bonds. The ~mount of defensed sewerage and water revenue bonds remaining outet~ding as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, was $10,040,000 and $11,425,000, respectively. On April 28, 1994, the Board issued drainage system bonds series 1994 for $9,410,000 with interest rates ranging fro~59 to 5.159. The bond proceeds were used to refund $10,555,000 of outstanding drainage system bonds, series 1978A, At 101.59 of par. By refunding the sarlos 1978A bonds, the Board reduced its aggregate debt aervioe payments by approximately $2,424,000 over the next 9 years 0~d incurred an economic gain (the difference between the net present values of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $1,913,000. 
The Board bills and collects sanitation charges on behalf of the clty of New Orleans (City). The Board is not liable for any uncollected sanitation charges. The amount due the City for sanitation fees collected was $338,580 and $263,518 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively. 

The assessed value of the property is deterxQinad by an elected Board of Assessors. The assessed value for 1995 was $1,V86,595,000. The combined tax rate dedicated for the Board for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 was $22.59 per $i,000 of assessed valuation. These dedicated funds are available for operations, nuaintenance, construction and extension of the drainage system (except for subsurface systems}. 12 - Con~nitmsnts a. Capital Improvements At Dace~nbar 51, 1995, the Board's budget for Its flve year capital improvements progr&mtotalled $491,754,000 including $138,822,000 for water, $157,786,000 for sewerage and $195,146,000 for drainage. Due to certain regulatory and legislative changes, additional capital improvements will probably be required. Future capital improvement program expenditures may require the issuance of additional debt depending on the amount and timing of expenditures. The Board has com~Littad or appropriated $81,947,238 in invas~nts for use in future capital projects. The investments ate included in restricted assets and a llke amount is appropriated in fund oqulty. The capital improvements budget for 1996 is $81,877,000. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
12 - At December 31, 1995, the estimated cost to complete authorized major construction end capital additions was $54,520,743. Significant projects included in property, plant and equipment in progress as of December 31, 1995 include the following: Drainage Pumping Station #II "C" basins at the Carrollton Water Treatment Plant Existing Gravity Sewer Mains Englneering/Laboratory Building and Main Water Plant Turbine Re,ovation at the Main Water Plant 
The Board is self-insured for general liability, worker's compensation, unemployment compensation and hospitalization benefits and claims. Settled claims have not exceeded excess coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Hospltalization benefits and unemployment compensation are charged to payroll related expense. 

Worker's compensation e~psnse provision for 1995 and 1994 amounted to $934,399 and $926,356, respectively. 

The hospitalization self-insurance benefits are administered by Blue Cross of Louisiana. The Board's expense provision in excess of the employee contributions for 1995 sad 1994 amounted approximately $817,000 and $766,000, respectively, and is included in payroll related expense. Changes in the claims payable amount were 
Fiscal Beginning Year of Year 1994 $12,069,878 1995 $13,327,046 

Current Year Claims and Estimate Chanqe Contract Adiustments 2,738,881 3,862,241 1,500,000 

40 

Claim Payments 1,481,6e~ 2,694,720 
End of Year 13,327,046 15,994,567 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
15 - Statements establises a finanolel ~epo~tlng framework for defined benefit pension plans into two oategorles of data: (1) current flnanoial information about plan assets and financial aetivltiae and (2) aetuarlslly determined information, from a long-term perspective, about funded status of the plan and progress in accumulating sufflolent assets. In November 1994, GASB issued Statement No. 27, Aceountinq for Pensions by State and Local Government Employez~, which is effeotlve for periods beginning after June 15, 1997. This Statements establishes standards for the measurement, recognition and display of pension expendltures/expense and related llabillties, assets, note disclosures and required supplumentary information in the flnanalal statements of state and local governmental employers. 

The impact of these p Board. ts are being reviewed by management of the 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 



ENTERPRISE FUND Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises- where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determi- nation of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, pub- lic policy management control, accountability, or other purposes. 



SEWERAGE AND HATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS BALANCE SHEETS ENTEHPRISE FUND 

Property, plant and equipment Less: accumulated depreciation 
Restricted assets: Capital projects Construction funds Debt service reserve Customer deposits Haalth insurance reserve Debt service Deferred co~ensation Other 
Current assets: Cash Accounts receivable: Customers (net of allowance for doubtful accounts) TaXes Interest Other Due fro~ City of New Orleans, current Inventory of supplies Prepaid expenses Total current assets 

$i,092,624,022 286,167,376 $1,058,230,302 263,313.989 

1,074,342 1,128,989 

200.000 5,713,835 318,227 19.584.960 Due frown City of New Orleans, less current portion 1,393,175 Other assets: Bond issue costs Deposits 
Total assets 

839,478 51.31B 890.793 
(Continued) 
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200,000 5,303,511 330f868 19r821a891 
1,454,831 
994,489 51,315 1,045o804 S 936,891,994 



SEWERAGE ~ WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS BALANCE SHEETS (Continued) 

Fund equity: Contributed capital Retained earnings- revenue invested in water, sewerage and drainage system: Property, plant and equipment Reserved for capital projects Reserved for bond debt service Total retained earnings- revenue invested reserved by bond covenants and restricted by Louisiana Revised Statutes Total fund equity Long-term liabillties~ Claims payable Bonds payable (nat of current maturities) Deferred compensation 

649,191,079 81,947,236 10,785,766 633,366,286 79,950,434 Iit877,921 

4,377,228 4,890,126 26,290,000 274t428 30,941,656 Current liabilities (payable from current asssts)~ Accounts payable 5,465,140 Due to City of New Orleans 338,580 Retainers and estimates payable 3,343,511 Due to pension trust fund 59,173 Accrued salaries 843,969 Accrued vacation and sick pay 9,502,147 claims payable 11,617,339 other liabilities 466,145 

35,370,000 
5,320,274 263,518 2,355,876 134,535 740,815 9,327,717 8,436,920 267,720 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets): Accrued interest 225,525 Bonds payable 9,080,000 Accounts payable 1,519 Retainers and estimates payable 713,052 Customer deposits 4,671,170 
Total current liabilities Total liabilities Total fund equity and liabilities 

276,147 8,580,000 271 735,703 4,625,464 14,691a266 14,217s585 46,327,270 41,064,960 77,268,926 8~325,086 $949,963,471 ~936r891f994 See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS ST&T~*IEHTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES ENTERPRISE FUND Years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 
Operating reven~esl Sales of water and delinquent fees Sewerage service charges Three-mill taw Six-mill tax Nine-mill tax Plumbing inspection and license fee Total Operating revenues Operating expenses: Power and pumping Treatment Transmission and distribution Customer accounts Customer service Administration and general Payroll related Maintenance of general plant Depreciation Amortization Provision for doubtful accounts Provision for claims Total operating expenses Net operating revenue Non-operatlng revenues (expense): Ad valorem taxes - two-mill tax Interest income Other revenue Interest expense Total non-operatlng revenues 

$ 54,162,872 39,362,297 7,973,558 8,073,404 12,097,348 _ 221,374 
$ 54,523,349 39,123,738 7,979,378 8,079,395 12,104,792 188,68~ 

15,503,644 12,041,238 16,252,634 2,590,466 2,647,094 12,776,351 13,690,399 8,285,339 23,496,527 155,012 1,024,383 30862t241 I12,325,328 __9,565,525 94,551 7,813,226 2,091,070 __(2,834,930) 

16,738,893 11,819,709 15,533,615 2,425,653 2,955,905 12,544,745 15,269,982 6,789,472 22,447,074 214,506 1,654,355 2,738,881 111,132,790 10r866r542 86,103 5,556,027 1,911,706 (3,691,800) 
Revenue invested in water, sewerage and drainage system property, plant and equipment 16,729,442 14,728,579 Retained earnings-revenue invested in water, sewerage and drainage system: Beginning of year End of year 725,194,641 ~41~924f083 710t466t062 $725,194,641 See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



 



GEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW OR1,F.ANS 
Years ended December 31t 1995 end 1994 

Cash flows frc~ operating activities: Cash received from customers Property taxes received Cash payments to suppliers for goods and aarvlces Cash payments to employees for services Other revenues Net cash provided by operating activities Cash flows from noncapital activities-proceeds fro~ 

$ 93,037,991 27,930,886 (39,100,655) (45,596,682) 2,091,070 
38,362,610 flnancinR property taxes 94,551 Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: Acquisition and construction of capital assets Principal payments on bonds payable Bond proceeds Bond issue cost Premium on refunded bonds Interest paid on bonds payable Capital contributed by developers, federal and state grants Net cash used for capital and related financing activities 

(33,331,272) (8,580,000) 
(2,885,552) 398r195 

$ 91,951,773 20,236,965 (30,866,288) (46,296,279) 

(34,202,000) (23,055,000) 8,410,000 (174,175) (158,325) (3,791,282) 
Cash flows from investing activities: Payments for purchase of investments (283,348,942) Proceeds frown maturities of investments 201,600,226 Interest on investments ?tSSlf430 Net cash provided by investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash at the beginning of the year Cash at the end of the year Reconciliation of cash and restricted cash: Current assets - cash Restricted assets - cash (note 2) Total cash (nots 2) 

(245,109,948) 255,264,286 5,091,785 
(59,754) 351,029 lt354,749 if294r995 

(Continued) 
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$1,074,342 220a653 ~112941995 

la003r720 $ 1,354.749 
$I~20,989 225m760 SI,354t749 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (Contlnued) ENTERPRISE FUND 
Reconciliation of nat operating revenue to net cash provided by operating activities for the enterprise fund is as follows: Net operating revenue Addt Other revenue 
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenue to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation Provision for clelms Provision for doubtful accounts Amortization Increase in customer and other recelvables (Increase) decrease in taxes receivable (Increase) decrease in inventory Decrease in prepaid expenses Increase (decrease) in accounts payable Increase (decrease) in due to pension Increase in accrued salaries and accrued vacation and sick pay Decrease in Other liabilities Nat cash provided by operating activities 

$ 9,565,525 2t091t070 11,656,595 

1994 
$10,866,542 1,911,706 12,778,248 

( 646,896) (1,827,096) (213 (410 12 144 (75 
424 324 641 866 362 

73 756 9 (345 2'7 
403 485 756 337 459 
521,763 (2,111,615) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



PENSION TRUST FUND Trust and Agency funds are used to account for assets held by a government in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other gov- ernments and/or other funds. Pension Trust Funds are used to account for public employee retirement systems (PERS). The Pension Trust Fund provides retirement, disability and survivor annuities to eligible employees. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM FUND Deoembsr 31, 1995 and 1994 

Cash Investmentst at nest (market valuer $106,194,612, 1995 and $83,083,377, 1994) Reoe~vablesl Interest Miscellaneous Due from enterprise fund Total assets 
Fund bnlancez Reserved for employee ~ontrlbutlons - annuity savings account Reserved for employer oontrlbutlons - pension aooumulntinn account Reserved for membership annuities - annuity reserve account Total fund balance Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 6,369 5,770 94,3?2,355 84,578,64? 815,204 22,646 591173 614,889 18,521 134#535 

$12,060,092 $11,069,277 36,364,076 29,810,644 
46 f851,579 95 f275,747 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



 



EMP]~DXEES' RETIRER~IlT BXSTEN FUND Years ended December 31w 1995 and 1994 
Cash flows from operating activities: ll:~loyar contributions Ea~ployee contributions Benefits and refunds paid to participants Net cash provided by operating activities Cemh flows from investing activities: payments for purchase of investmentl Proceeds ~rommaturlties of InvastRsnts Investment income received Net cash used in investing activities Not increase (decrease) In cash Cash at the beginning of the year Cash at the end of the year Reconciliation of net operating revenue to net cash provldedby operating activities for the pension trust fund is as follows: Net operating revenue Lees interest income received, included in investing activities 

$ 5,188,055 1.395,148 $ 5,102,920 1,298,780 

(102,652,573) (66,875,035) 92,952,578 8.850.801 
( 849,194) 599 ,, 5i,770 6f369 

60,562,969 5.049.703 
(81,464) 87,234 5f770 

9,923,385 $ 5,870,940 
872,269 1,211,630 Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenue to net cash provldedby operetlng activities: Increase in other receivable (4,125) (3,272) Increase in due frc~ enterprise fund and contributions Net cash provldedby operating activities (27,459) 1,180.~99 

See ecc~anying notes to financial statements. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS Schedule 5 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PENSION TRUST FUND REVENUES BY SOURCE AND EXPENSES BY TYPE Ten Years Ended December 31. 1995 
Revenues by Source 

Fisc.~d Year Benefits Refunds 
$5,422,117 (3) 4,846,393 4,545,392 4,541,457 4,291,998 4,188,986 4,043,308 3,749,971 3,430,112 3,026,568 

$311,294 374,408 133,201 309,819 190,015 291,991 335,709 231,263 187, 518 266,944 
Contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution requirement. 

Total 
$5,733,411 5,220,801 4,678,593 4,851,276 4,482,013 4,480,977 4,378,015 3,981,234 3,617,630 3,293,5"12 

(1) Employee contributions include reciprocal transfers for City of New Orleans employees of $237,054. (2) Employer contributions include reCiprocal transfers from the City of New Odeans for employees who transferred of $76,497. (3) Benefits include reciprocal transfers out of $93,890. See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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At the 1995 Earth Fest Celebration in Audubon Park employees from the Environmental Affairs and Community and Intergovemmental Relations departments shared information with the public regarding water pollution. 

.~,h;L .;~i:-. FE;.:C'; 

Pearcy Mack, Sr. was one of twelve Sewerage and Water Board employees who retired in 1995. Mr. Mack accumulated 39 years of service. He started with the Board as a Laborer and worked up through the ranks to a position of Supervisor II. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt Dece~)sr 31, 1995 (Unaudlted) 

Direct debt: Sewerage and Water Board, net of debt service funds (Tax bonds only) overlapping debt: City of New Orleans Audubon Park Commission Orleans Parish School Board Orleans Levee District (i) Total overlapping debt Total direct and overlapping debt 

Net Outstanding Debt Percentage overlsnDinu overlapping Debt 

432,260,829 49,030,000 177,822,403 2141479r844 
100% 100% 100% 100~ 

432,260,829 49,030,000 177,822,403 2141479a844 

(i) The fisoal year of the Orleans Parish School Board and Orleans Levee District ends on June 30th. overlapping debt iB based on Jttne 30, 1995 financial inforn~ation. 



 



Year 1996 

1998 

2001 

2003 

Pi'JncJpaf Interest 

Pdnoipal Interut 
Princlpal Interest 
Prlnelpld Inter~t 
Prir~ipal Interelt 
Principal Interest Prlrmlpal Interest 
Principal Interut Total 

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD ElF NEW ORLEANS SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT PAYMENTS 
Water ~lwertue 9-mnl 1988 ~A 94n111 6-mill 1986 "B' 1994 Total 
2,405,000 827,445 
2,335,000 661,500 
1,760,000 498,050 
1.900,000 374.850 
2,055,000 241.850 
435.000 98,000 
465,000 67,550 

2.720.000 394.880 
2,960.000 207.200 

3,140,000 703,860 
3,360.000 487.200 
3.600,000 252,000 

815.000 390,055 
~5,~0 349,308 
895,000 3088,558 
935,000 261.808 
980,000 215,058 
1.035,000 166,058 
1,080,000 113.790 

9,080,000 2,516.240 
9,510,000 1,705,208 
6,255,000 1.056,608 
~9,~9 
3.035,000 456.908 
1,470,000 264,058 
1.545.000 181.340 

1,140,000 1,640,000 



 



l~,~w ~1, 1.994t (U~aucLt ted) 
1994 AJ~aoaeed value South Central Bell Telephone utilities $ 77,702,000 4.5% Telephone Co. New 0rleans Public Service, Inc. Electric and Gas 67,194,000 Utilities Hibernia National Financial Instituti~~ 23,511,000 Bank First National Bank Financial Institution 16,983,000 of Commerce 

3.9 1.4 
1.0 

Westm/nster City Office Real Estate 14,937,000 .9 Center properties Canal Place 2000 Office Real Estate 14,597,000 Whitney National Bank Financial Institution 11,343,000 of New Orleans Gerald D. Hines & Office Real Estate 10,808,000 Associates Ayrshire Land Joint Office Real Estate 9,833,000 Ventures American Telephone Telephone utility and Telegraph 

Source: City of New orleans 

8,435r000 ~2551343f000 

.8 .6 

.6 

.6 

.5 
14.8% 

(*) The latest date available for the Ten Largest Taxpayers in the City of New Orleans is for the year ended December 31, 1994. 



Philip J Ciesi, ASA, MAAA, EA Prtsiden! ar.d E.mlled Ac~.~.' #2938 
April 17, 1996 

Mr. Harold J. Gorman, Executive Director Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans 625 St. Joseph Street New Orleans, La. 70165 
Dear Mr. Gorman: 

504/486-6811 504/486-6833 fax 

Re: December 31, 1995 Actuarial Valuation 
This report presents the results and liabilities of the Employees' Water Board of New Orleans as of summary of the valuation results 

of an actuarial valuation of the assets Retirement System of the Sewerage & December 31, 1995. Following is a brief with a comparision to the prior year: VALUATION SUMMARY AS OF: 12/31/94 12/31/95 
Number Active Members Number Regular Retirees w/o Survivor Annuity Number Regular Retirees with Survivor Annuity Number Disabled Retirees Number Surviving Spouses Number Surviving Children less than age 18 Subtotal Number Members with Deferred Vested Benefits Number Spouses with Deferred Vested Benefits Number Terminated with Contributions on Deposit Number Members in System Annualized December Payroll Normal Cost Total Actuarial Liability Actuarial Value of Assets Unfunded Actuarial Liabillty 

1,601 1,596 322 102 57 71 3 555 9 4 8 2,177 

323 102 58 71 3 557 i0 3 20 2,186 $ 30,178,052. $ 31,952,080. $ $ii $ 8 $2 
$ $12 $I0 $2 Employer Contribution to pay the Normal Cost and keep the Unfunded Actuarial Liability from increasing assuming monthly contributions: 10.87% 9.88% Employer Contribution to pay the Normal Cost and amortize the Unfunded Actuarial Liability by December 3], 2003 (i.e. 8 years from 12/31/95) assuming monthly contributions and 4% per year payroll growth: 16.29% 15.47% 3243PonccdcLeonStr~ct ~ NewOrlea.s, LAT0119-3107 



Mr. Harold J. Gorman, Executive Director December 31, 1995 Actuarial Valuatlon page 2 
12/31/78 12/31195 Annuallzed December Payroll $12,115,333. $ Actuarial Liability $37,716,026. $I Actuarial Value of Assets $ 7,788,274. $1 Unfunded Actuarial Liabillty $29,927,752. $ Ratio of Assets to Actuarial Liability 20.6% Ratio of Unfunded Actuarial Liab. to Payroll 247.0% This report presents the results of an actuarial valuation of System assets and llabilltles as of December 31, 1995. Effective January 1, 1996, the Retirement System was amended to include a Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP). Although the immediate effect of such program is to defer retirement by some employees who are considering retiring at this time, the long-term effect wlll be to increase early retirement rates. Since the reduction in pension for early retirement is less than the actual cost to the System, the DROP option will have an effect on the System, but such effect is expected to be minlmal. Since the Deferred Retirement Option Program was not in effect at the date of this valuation, no adjustment to the early retirement rates was assumed for the purpose of this valuatlon. 

Per Exhibits 2 and 3, the Board's Retirement System is in excellent flnanclal condition. Sincerely yours, 
sl Enrolled Actuary 



EXHIBIT 1 COST AND LIABILITIES 
PLAN: SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS RETIREMENT SYSTEM VALUATION DATE: DECEMBER 31, 1995 A. ANNUALIZED DECEMBER PAYROLL B. NORMAL I. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6 7 8 9 I0 II 

COSTS AT BEGINNING OF FISCAL YEAR: RETIREMENT BENEFIT(BASIC) RETIREMENT BENEFIT(SUPPL) DEATH BENEFIT(SURVIVOR) DEATH BENEFIT(OPT2) DISABILITY BENEFIT(EMPLOYEE} DISABILITY BENEFIT(SURVIVOR) VESTING BENEFIT(BASIC) VESTING BENEFIT(SUPPL) REFUND OF CONTRIBUTION(NOR-VESTED) REFUND OF CONTRIBUTION(VESTED} REFUND OF CONTRIBUTION(DEATH) TOTAL C. ACTUARIAL LIABILITY FOR ACTIVES: I. RETIREMENT BENEFIT(BASIC) 2. RETIREMENT EEHEFIT(SUPPL) 3. DEATH BENEFIT(SURVIVOR) 4. DEATH BENEFIT(OPT2) 5. DISABILITY BENEFIT(EMPLOYEE) 6. DISABILITY BENEFIT(SURVIVOR) 7. VESTING BENEFIT(BASIC) 8. VESTING BENEFIT(SUPPL) 9. REFUND OF CONTRIBUTION(NON-VESTED) 10. REFUND OF CONTRIBUTIONiVESTED) 11. REFUND OF CONTRIBUTION(DEATH) TOTAL D. ACTUARIAL LIABILITY FOR INACTIVES: I. RETIRED WITH MAXIMUM BENEFIT 2. RETIRED WITH OPTIONAL ANNUITY 3. RETIRED ON DISABILITY 4. RETIRED SURVIVORS 5. TERMINATED WITH VESTED BENEFIT 6. TERMINATED WITH CONTR. ON DEPOSIT TOTAL E. TOTAL ACTUARIAL LIABILITY (C+D) F. ACTUARIAL VALUE OF ASSETS G. UNFUNDED ACTUARIAL LIABILITY (E-F 

31,952,080. 
1,378,681. 13,645. 44,650. 36,934. 307,477. 53,552. 356,278. 4,334. 412,659. 34,832. 3,859. 

OF PAYROLL 

2,644,701. 8.28~ 
61,125,688. 860,740. 901,856. 1,606,256. 5,839,495. 1,093,808. 7,186,908. 75,331. -2,371,833. 600,689. 96,612. $ 77,015 550. 
$ 24,826,673. $ 14,905,895. $ 3,534,415. $ 3,112,154. $ 425,358. $ 47,084. $ 46,~51,579. $123,867,129. $100,059,569. $ 23,807,560. 74.51~ 



EXHIBIT 1 CONTINUED... 

N. CONTRIBUTION REQUIRED TO PAY THE NORMAL COST AND KEEP THE UNFUNDED ACTUARIAL LIABILITY FROM INCREASING NEXT YEAR, ASSUMING CONTRIBUTIONS ARE PAYABLE MONTHLY: EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION RATE: EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION RATE: TOTAL CONTRIBUTION RATE: 

EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION RATE: EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION RATE: TOTAL CONTRIBUTION RATE: 
NOTE: EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTE 4.00~ OF MONTH OR $1200 PER YEAR. THIS RATE OF 3.76~ OF TOTAL SALARY $20,020.00 AS OF DECEMBER 31, 

3.76~ 9.88X 13.64X 

3.76X 15.47t 19.23t 
THEIR SALARY IN EXCESS OF $100 PER RATE IS EQUIVALENT TO A CONTRIBUTION ~ BASED UPON AN AVERAGE SALARY OF 1995 . 



EXHIBIT 2 ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
PLAN: SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS RETIREMENT SYSTEM VALUATION DATE: DECEMBER 31, 1995 
(1) CAL YEAR ENDING (2) (3) (4) (s) (6) (~) ACTUARIAL ACTUARIAL ~ UNFUNDED ANNUALIZED VALUE OF LIABILITY FUNDED LIABILITY PAYROLL PAYROLL ASSETS (2)/(3) (3)-(2) (5)/(6) 12/31/78 $ 7,786,274. $ 37,716,026. 20,6E $29,927,752. $12,115,333. 247.0g 12131179 $ 9,228,979. $ 40,496,653. 22o8~ $31,267,674. $14,845,287. 210.6~ 12/31/80 $ 10,309,098. $ 42,079,503. 24.5~ $31,770,405. $15,500,604. 205.0~ 12/31/81 $ 12,408,095. 12/31/82 $ 15,424,838. 12/31/83 S 18,512,930. 

$ 47,789,454. 26.0g $35 $ 54,586,127. 28.3g $39 $ 59,392,555* 31.2~ $40 
381 161 879 
359 289 625 12/31/84 $ 22,243,111. $ 63,591,868. 35.0t $41,348,757. 12/31/85 $ 26,793,711. $ 65,470,924, 40.9g $38,677,213. 12/31/86 $ 32,722,842. 12/31/87 $ 38,942,791. 12/31/88 $ 45,181,224. 

$ 70,915,951, 46.1g $38,193,109. $ 77,304,167. 50.4t $38,361,376. 81,483,781. 55.5~ $36,302,587. 12131189 $ 51,096,184. $ 85,342 541. 59.9~ $34,246,357. 12/31/90 $ 57,530,962. $ 91,491 842, 62.9~ $33,960,880. 12/31/91 $ 64,921,832. $ 97,013 630. 66.9~ $32,091,798. 12/31/92 $ 72,541,969. $103,242 751. 70.3g $30,700,782. 12/31/93 $ 81,932,422. $110,907 054. 73.9~ $28,974,610. 12131194 $ 87,957,901. $114,791160. 76.6~ $26,833,259. 

$17 521 $22 $23 $23 $25 $26 $26 $25 $27 $26 $29 $30 $30 

857 269 016 766 402 384 583 202 801 140 111 774 248 178 

576 818 816 784 106 624 220 498 492 566 436 648 264 052 

198.1t 
185.?~ 174.0g 165.3~ 150.5~ 144.3t 138.5~ 132.7g 125.1g 114.2~ 103.1g 95.8t 88.9t 12131195 $I00,059,569, $123,867 129. 80,8t $23,807,560. $31,952,080. 74.5g NOTES: FOR FUNDING PURPOSES, PLAN INVESTMENTS HAVE BEEN VALUED VIA THE USE OF A SMOOTHING FACTOR DETERMINED BY CALCULATING THE AVERAGE OF THE RATIOS OF MARKET VALUE TO COST VALUEOVER A MOVING SEVEN-YEAR PERIOD, AND APPLYING SAID FACTOR TO THE COST VALUE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF THE DATE OF VALUATION. THIS RESULTANT MEASURE OF THE VALUE OF ASSETS IS REFERRED TO AS THE "ACTUARIAL VALUE OF ASSETS." 
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EXHIBIT 3 ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
PLAN: SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS RETIREMENT SYSTEM VALUATION DATE: DECEMBER 31, 1995 
THE FOLLOWING LIABILITIES REPRESENT THE PRESENT VALUE OF VESTED AND NONVESTED ACCRUED BENEFITS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1995 . 

1. VESTED ACCRUED BENEFITS FOR ACTIVE EMPLOYEES 2. VESTED ACCRUED BENEFITS FOR TERMINATED EMPLOYEES 3. VESTED ACCRUED BENEFITS FOR RETIRED EMPLOYEES 4. PRESENT VALUE OF VESTED ACCRUED BENEFITS(l+2+3) 5. NON-VESTED ACCRUED BENEFITS FOR ACTIVE EMPLOYEES 6. PRESENT VALUE OF VESTED AND NON-VESTED ACCRUED BENEFITS(4~5) 7. ASSETS AT MARKET VALUE 8. UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY(6-7, BUT NOT LESS THAN 0) 9. UNFUNDED VESTED ACCRUED LIABILITY (4-7, HUT NOT LESS THAN 0) 

PRESENT VALUE $ 33,634,969. $ 472,442. $ 46,379,137. $ 80,486,548. $ 3,289,529. 
$ 83,776,077. $107,098,003. 0. 
$ 0. 

THE ABOVE LIABILITIES WERE CALCULATED UTILIZING THE FOLLOWING ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS: 
MORTALITY : 1971 GROUP ANNUITY MORTALITY TABLE RETIREMENT: WHEN FIRST ELIGIBLE INTEREST : 7.0~ WITHDRAWAL: NONE 



The Sewerage and Water Awards Ceremony for 1995 Employees were recognized service and outstanding job 
Board's Annual Employee was held at the Hyatt Hotel. for their years of dedicated performance. 

Marvin Russell, Water Purification Superintendent, Assistant, received the 1995 Executive Director's Award for outstanding employee of the year. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 1995 ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

110 118 122 155 156 157 
200 214 235 239 
600 800 

Normal Extension & Eaplnoames2t Modernization of Steam Systm| Filter Rehabilitation Msehnnloal Renovations of Conventional Basins Advanced Carrollton Water Treatment Advnnoed Algiers Water TreetAent 
$ 745,680.38 688,306.39 488,766.89 754,692.44 33,767.62 402,278.95 
363.24 296,437.20 18,323.80 1,486,640.12 TOT.AL N~TER DISTRIBIFEIGm ~ lrSOlr764h36 

Water Share of Power Projeati~ Water Share of General Budget Items 303,785.31 6,569,775.79 TOTAL MATER DEPARflSG~T ~11r783r818.13 
|OTKI Rose figures do not includE, proration of Intez~st expense. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 1995 ACTUkL CAPITAL EXPERDITURES 

C.P. | 316 317 326 339 348 360 364 365 366 
c.P. t 381 
600 800 

Sub-Melns & Looal Sewers Eormel Extensions & Rep1aoemant of Gravity Mains Extensions & Rep1noemant to Sewer Pumping Stations Melns in Streets Dept Contrnots Normal Extensions and Replnoements Treatment Plants Raplnoement of Sewer Lines Fores Mains Replacements Sewerage pumplng station #26 repleoement Irish Bayou-Lake Catherine Sewerage 
Mod~floatlon & Expansion of WBSTp to MaD 

$ 133,031.25 983,690.39 207,930.94 1,324,124.22 1,089,289.42 2,643,302.48 178,966.43 80,138.58 ., 164,616.47 6,Sm.0~0.1S 
2,165,085.65 

TOTAL SEt(Arm ~  $ 2.165.085.65 Sewerage Share of Power Pro~eats Sewerage Share Of General Budget Items 292,063.71 4,975,869.18 TOTAL SE'WERAG~E D]EP~ $14.238.108.72 

*NOTEs These figures do not tnolude proration of lntmrmet expense 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BO~RD OF NEW ORLEANS 1995 ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

418 453 471 472 489 
C-P-t 511 52o 535 537 566 550 
600 800 

Normal Extensions & aeplacenents Improvements to Note~r~e Relief Canal C.O.E. Drainage Study Tohoup~toulas Corridor Ketairie Relief (17th St,) Canal 
Normal Extensions & Rep./Btat~ona Florida ~venue - Industrial Canal 

Drainage Share of Power Projeote Drainage Share of General Budget ltaus 

9 

$ 525.61 142,553.92 191,656.46 416,721.30 10e363.01 

$ 93,164.63 125,796.71 le770,693.75 494t813.89 86,486.34 2r298,563.81 
300,906.98 3,082t686.51 

lO'/zs These fJ.garea do not J.nolnde proration of :tntmz'wmt expense. 
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POWER PURCHASED AND PRODUCED NATURAL GAS AND FUEL OIL CONSUMED - 1995 
ELECTRIC POWER PURCHASED 55,977,302 $3,775,458 ELECTRIC AND STEAM POWER 53,028,000 $6,324,054 GENERATED BY THE S&WB* 109,005,302 $10,099,512 
NOTE:*NATURAL GAS CONSUMED IN OPERATION WAS 1,273,288 MCF AT A COST OF $5,569,915. FUEL OIL CONSUMED WAS 4,614 GALLONS AT A COST OF $3,922. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS WATER PUMPED AND CONSUMED - 1995 
Number of Connection~ 
8 37 17 13 147 220 60 206 7O8 
166 

Free metered water to various City departments and charitable instltutlonsz Display Fountains Fire Department Swlmmlng Pools Libraries Municipal Parks and Playgrounds Police Department Suhoola 
Sewerage and Water Board 

Allowance for leeks in piping fixtures, etc. 

6,312,900 12,689,400 26,149,000 2,831,200 102,663,200 458,288,500 394.988.700 134.493.000 1,138,415,90~ 2.35~ 

Unmetered free use, such em~ extln~is~nt of fires, cleaning streets, flushing sewers, drains, and gutters, cleaning markets and other public buildings, under registration of meters, leaks in distribution system, etc. 21,761,008,700 45.54% Sold Total Water Pumped 



GALLONS METERED - PAY WATER CONSUMPTION 1995 

January February March April May June July August September October November December 

Monthly Consu~ion 2,088,191,900 1,636,284,800 1,800,383,500 1,865,273,000 2,031,750,900 2,152,727,900 2,274,204,600 2,149,892,300 2,131,873,400 2,256,203,300 2,142,994,800 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS MONTHLY WATER RATE CO~J, ECTIONS . 1995 

January February Maroh April May June July August September Ootober November Deoember 

Water Rate & Servioe 
4 4 4 3 4 4 4 4 4 

544 168 586 356 452 625 115 948 246 

515 237 019 068 851 916 763 8"/4 641 

09 92 78 69 10 60 40 49 85 5,064,550.83 4,333,844.50 . 4r376f618,16 $52.821,002.41 

Delln~sent Fees 28 81 65 58 108,066.52 135,753.24 150,883.68 122,103.99 154,718.63 158,593.67 145,158.14 107.799.78 $1,669,209.07 

Water From Fire 
$ 344.08 1,505.35 1,505.35 2,860.67 0.00 1,505.35 2,666.62 1,849.43 1,505.35 1,033.24 2,322.54 lt505.35 

Total $ 4,660,201.45 4,386,060.18 4,752,957.78 3,448,968.94 4,560,517.62 4,763,175.19 4,269,313.70 5,072,827.91 4,402,865.83 5,224,177.74 4,481,425.18 4 485 923.29 $18,603.33 $54,508,814.81 
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOAPJ) OF NEW ORLEANS MONTHLY SEWERAGE RATE COLLECTIONS - 1995 

January February March April May Juue July August September Ootober Rovelbe~ December 

Sewerage Rate & Service Charqes $ 3,129,426.71 2,986,134.56 3,250,791.01 2,407,401.70 3,160,600.89 3,283,094.48 2,895,130.69 3,438,886.98 3,056,716.21 3,569,537.02 2,998,187.34 3rO44t026.39 ~37(219f933.88 

Dellnquent Fees $ 46,800.22 86,672.79 66,917.80 36,488.91 43,513.17 55,145.40 60e686.84 49,857.61 63,379.69 64,494.06 58,883.17 43,757.06 

Total $ 3,176,226.93 3,072,807.35 3,317,708.81 2,443,890.61 3,204,114.06 3,338,239.88 2,955,817.53 3,488,744.59 3,120,095.90 3,634,031.08 3,057,070.51 3,D87a783.45 



 

TABLE I CARROLLTON TURBIDITIE~ kWluent tJoagulatlng RIVER Reservoirs Fitters (NTU) (NTU) 1991 1992 INTU1994 160 1994 0.86 2.3 1 .S 0.99 03 Maximum 342 :1 o,334 2 27 230 13~ 2.2 2.6 11.5 2.2 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 Minimum 3 12 8 Average 92 86 102 59 61 7.8 10 8.1 7.2 0.19 0.14 0.27 0.14 0.12 TABLE II CARROLLTON ALKAUNmES PARTS PER MILLION 

1991 1992 Maximum 70 ii Minimum 26 26 Averaqe 46 
TABLE II A CARROLLTON HARDNESS PARTS PER MILLION 
FILTERS 59 67 111 73 93 71 73 17 24 45 54 55 I 34 35 35 32 40 

RIVER 991 1992 1993 19941199~ 212 198 216 182t 203 98 130 122 105 115 151 163 161 150 159 
TABLE III CARROLLTON BACTERIAL CHARACTERISTICS Coliform Group Organisms per 100 Milliters 

FILTERS 1991 1992 1993 ~1994 1995 134 174 196I 170 211 60 97 91 106 99 103 123 134 ~32 144 
River Effluent of Coagulating Plant Tap Distribution 1995 (1995) and Settling Reservoirs (1995~ System ~Aaximum 13,000 1,000 0 2 Minimum 75 <10 0 0 ~.verage 1,420 62 0 0 Total Samples 361 177 365 2,253 total Samples Negative 0 61 365 2,252 Total Samples Positive 361 116 0 
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TASLE VII FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS DATA (1991 - 1995) FOR NEW ORLEANS DRINKING WATER PURIFICATION SYSTEM M SSlSSIPPI RIVER F N[SHED WATER PARAMETER (B ~ore Purification (~ fter Purification) MAX MIN AVG MAX MIN AVG "OTAL A.LKAU NITY (PPM AS CaCO3) 162 82 111 140 30 74 "OTAL HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCOC~ 216 98 157 225 59 128 4ONCARBONATE HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) 112 17 48 106 21 55 ~ALCIUM,,HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) 177 71 121 157 48 e5 /IAGNESIUM HARDNESS pPM AS CaC03I 84 5 35 87 8 33 4EPHELOMETRIC TURBIDITY (N,T.U.) 342 3 80 1.43 0.01 0.21 !ACKSON TURBIDITY (J.T.U.1 430 25 122 8,41 7,29 7.92 10,10 8,43 9.21 ~4LORID, E (PPM) 84 t0 26 70 13 28 'LUORIDE (PPM) 0.54 0,10 0,27 1,37 0.20 0.89 "OTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS (PPM) 329 103 221 324 93 181 "OTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS (PPMI 474 2 121 ~REE CHLORINE RESIDUAL (PPM AS CL2) 1.6 0.0 O.O 'OTAL CHLORINE RESIDUAL (PPM AS CL2) 3.9 0.6 2.7 AMMONIA (PPM AS N~ 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.8 0.0 0.2 DRTHO PHOSPHATE (PPM AS PO4) 1,2 0.2 0.4 1,0 0,1 0.3 TOTAL PHOSPHATE (PPM AS PO4I 1,2 0.2 0.5 1.2 0.3 05 SULFATE, ~PPM AS SO4) 87.3 27.1 52.0 9! 5 25.7 53.0 ;IUCA (PPM AS SIO2) 8.8 4,1 8.O 7.3 3.2 5,1 NITRATE (PPM AS N) 3.6 0.8 2.2 5.8 0,7 2.2 NITRITE (PPM AS N) 0.4 0.0 0,1 0.5 0.0 0;0 COLOR (Scale Units) 20 10 14 10 5 5.8 CONDUCTIVITY (umhol;/cm) 620 185 390 501 174 347 TEMPERATURE (DEG. F,) 88 32 59 98 46 ALUMINUM (PPB) 778 1 3O 0 14 A, RSENIC (PPB) 5.0 0.0 1.0 0.o 0.3 ~ARIUM (PPB) 251 5 6B.6 118 1.o 32 CADMIUM (PPB) 0.5 0,0 0.0 0,5 O.O 0.0' ~HROMIUM (PPB) 2.0 O,O 0.1 3,0 0.o 0.0 COPPER (PPB1 27,0 0.0 4.4 140.0 1.0 9.0 RON (PPE) 359 1 24.2 740 1.0 30.2 .EAD (PPB) 6.0 O,0 0.0 7.0 0.0 0.O ~tERCURY (PPS) 1.0 O,O 0.0 0.5 0.0 0,0 SELENIUM (PPB) 2.0 0.0 0,4 2.0 0,0 0.2 SILVER (PPB~ 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0,0 0.0 .~INC (PPB) 244 2 10 439 0 17 ~OTASSIUM (PPM) 5.2 2,2 3.4 5.O 2,1 3.3 3ODIUM (PPM) 42.8 6.9 21 49.9 8.7 2O,4 tOTAL TRIHALOMETHANES (PPB) 10.8 0.0 0.0 135 3,3 13,1 tOTAL ORGANIC CARSON IPPM) 11.8 1,5 6.0 7.8 1.1 3.8 ,2-DICHLOROETHANE (PPS) 18.7 0,O 0.1 3.2 0.0 0.0 ~HLOROFORM (PPS~ 10.8 O.O 0.0 100 3.3 11.3 CARBON TETRACHLORIDE (PPB~ 7.8 0.O 0.0 1.8 0,0 0.0 3ROMODICHLOROMETHANE (PPB) 0.5 0.0 0,0 29.1 0.0 1.7 FETRACHLOROETHENE (ppsI 9.1 0,O 0.0 1.8 0.0 0,0 3TX (Bm~,--.. Toluene & Xylene~) (PPS) 15,2 O.O 0.0 2.3 0.0 O,0 tOTAL COLIFORMS I~olonies/100 ml) 13000 <1DO 1664 110 : 0 0 tETEROTR, OPHIC PLATE COUNT (~oL/100 ml) 88250 100 7432 1700 0 11 :ECAL COLIFORMS (~oloniel/lO0 ml) 2900 <10 313 :ECAL STREPTOCOCCI (colonies/lO0 ml) 11600 10 605 



 

TABLE VIII CARROLLTON OPERATION 
!CHEMICAL COST PER CHEMICAL CHEMICAL COST MILLION GALLONS LIME $624,484.53 $11.84 FERRIC COAGULANT $561,023.81 $12.66 CHLORINE $318,420.01 $7.19 SODIUM POLYPHOSPHATE $110,910.55 $2.5O POLYELECTROLYTE $165,075.44 $3.73 FLUORIDE (100%) $71,327.87 $1.61 AMMONIA $45,274.56 $1,02 CARBON $8,897.16 $0.20 TOTAL CHEMICALS $1,805,413.94 $40.75 

Purification Plant Operating Cost: Total Water TREATED 1995: $4,389,820.00 44.309.810.000 Gallons 

TOTAL COST PER MILLION GALLONS TOTAL WATER TREATED COST PER YEAR MILLION GALLONS OPERATING COST MILLION GALLONS 1995 44,578.29 $4,389,820.00 $98.47 1994 41,503.75 $4,154,445.00 $100.10 1993 42,854.08 $4,177,643.00 $97.49 1992 41,923.81 $3,958,972.00 $94.43 1991 41,899.77 $4,029,604.00 $96.17 



 

TABLE IX ALGIERS OPERATION 
CHEMICAL COST PER CHEMICAL CHEMICAL COST MILLION GALLONS LIME $79,662.41 $18.89 FERRIC COAGULANT $60,674.84 $14.39 CHLORINE $41,312.21 $9.80 SODIUM POLYPHOSPHATE $11,089.00 $2.63 POLYELECTROLYTE $21,375.31 $5.07 FLUORIDE (100%) $3,797.02 $0.90 AMMONIA $6,287.46 $1.49 CARBON $6,090.92 $1.44 TOTAL CHEMICALS $230,289,17 $54.60 

Purification Plant Operating Cost Total Water TREATED 1995: $1,088,219.00 4.217.430.000 Gallons 

TOTAL COST PER MILLION GALLONS 
TOTAL WATER TREATED COST PER YEAR MILLION GALLONS OPERATING COST MILLION GALLONS 1995 4,217.43 $1,088,219.00 $258.03 1994 4,187,88 $1,178,993.00 $281.53 1993 3,715,99 $1,229,163.00 $330.76 1992 3,604.74 $1,074,608.00 $298.11 1991 3,502.95 $903,886.00 $258.04 



 

TABLE X SLUDGE REMOVED FROM THE "G" BASINS PRIMARY TREATMENT UNITS DORR MONORAKE CONVENTIONAL SYSTEM 1995 ,Total M.G. Water Treated 29,358.45 lotal Tons Dry Sludge Deposited in Basins Including Suspended ~nd Dissolved Solids Removed and Reacting Chemicals 24,797 total M.G. Wet Sludge Withdrawn From Basins 878.28 ~verage Percent Solids in Wet Sludge 0.67 ]oral M.G. Water Used in Withdrawing Sludge 875.80 Percent of Total Water Treated Used in Withdrawing Wet Sludge 2.99 

TABLE X-A SLUDGE REMOVED FROM THE "L" BASINS PRIMARY TREATMENT UNITS DORR MONORAKE CONVENTIONAL SYSTEM 1995 Total M.G. Water Treated 14,951.36 Total Tons Dry Sludge Deposited in Basins Including Suspended and Dissolved Solids Removed and Reacting Chemicals 12,420 Total M,G, Wet Sludge Withdrawn From Basins 315,27 Average Percent Solids in Wet Sludge 0.94 Total M.G. Water Used in Withdrawing Sludge 314.03 Percent of Total Water Treated Used in Withdrawing Wet Sludge 2.11 



 

TABLE Xl 1995 ANALYSIS DATA FOR NEV~/ORLEANS DRINKING WATER PURIFICATION SYSTEM M ISSISSIPPI RIVE~ I F INISHED WATEIq PARAMETER (E ~fore Purification ( ~fter Pudficationl MAX MIN AVG MAX MIN AVG TOTAL ALKALtNFEY ~PPM AS CaCOC~ 150 82 117 140 48 87 i'OTAL HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCOC) 115 152 211 107 145 ~ONCARBONATE HARDNESS IPPM AS CaCOC~ 24 42 78 37 58 CALCIUM HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCOC~ 155 79 113 167 62 101 V~AGNESIUM HARDNESS (PPM AS CaC0~) 114 2O 48 86 15 43 ~I~PHELOM~IRIC TURBIDITY (N.T.U.~ 230 8 61 1,08 0.02 0.17 JACKSON TURBIDITY (J.T.U,) 300 25 95 ~H 8.32 7.87 7.97 0.31 8,43 5.25 ~HLORIDE (PPM~ 00 12 30 52 22 34 :LUOR~DE (PPM) 0.4 O.1 0.25 1.37 0.7 0.92 FOTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS (PPM) 306 149 241 324 165 225 tOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS (PPM) 215 24 101 :REE CHLORINE RESIDUAL IPPM AS CL2I 0 0 0 1.57 0 0.11 tOTAL CHLORINE RESIDUAL (PPM AS CL2I 0 O o 3.50 1.57 2,84 ~,MMONIA (PPM AS N) 0 0 O 0.20 0.02 0.12 :)RTHO PHOSPHATE (PPM AS PO4) 0.43 0.21 0.24 0.33 0,16 0.23 tOTAL PHOSPHATE (PPM AS POt) 0.55 0.25 0,38 0.67 0.24 0.40 ;ULFATE (PPM AS SO4) 73.9 39.0 51.2 73,4 40.5 52.5 ;ILICA (PPM AS Si02~ S.0 4.1 5.5 6.6 3.2 4.5 ~IITRATE (PPM AS N) 3.82 0.08 2.25 2.76 0.89 1.87 41TRITE (PPM AS N) 0,23 0.02 0.12 0.53 0,00 0,13 .'OLOR (Scale Units) 10 t0 15 3 5 5 ~ON DUCTIVITY lumhos/cm) 545 293 410 501 395 "EMPERATURE (DEG, F.) 55 30 62 99 75 ~.LUMIN UM (PPB) 72 1 24 35 I 13 ~RSENIC (PPB~ 2 0 0.9 2 0 0,4 |ARIUM (PPB) 172 5 56 89 2 35 :ADMIUM (PPB) O.5 O.0 0.0 0.5 o.o 0.0 ;HROMIUM (PPB) 0.5 O.0 0.1 1.0 0.0 0,1 ~OPPER (PPB) 7 0 4 75 1 7 ;~ON (PPB) 77 1 19 725 3 32 LEAD (PPS) 1 0 0 3 0 0.1 MERCURY (PPS) 0 0 O 0 0 0 SELENIUM (PPB) 2 O 0.3 2 0 0.2 SILVER (PPB) 0 0 O 0 0 0 ZINC {PPB) 244 2 21 439 1 POTASSIUM (PPM) 4.4 2.5 3.6 4.4 2.4 3.5 SO~IUM (PpM1 42 14 24 38.8 13.1 24,1 TOTAL TRIHALOMETHANES (PPBI 0.0 O.O O.O 39.2 5.3 17 TOTAL ORGANIC CARBON (PPM) 6.7 2.9 4.5 4.5 1,4 3,1 ,2-DICHLOROETHANE (PPS) O.0 0.0 O.0 O.0 0.0 0,0 CHLOROFORM (PPB) 0.0 0,0 0.O 36,3 4,6 14.2 CARBON TETRACHLORIDE (PPB) 0.0 0.O 0.0 9.O 0,0 0.O BROMODICHLOROMETHANE ~PPB~ 0.0 0.0 0.O 0,3 0.0 2,7 r ETRACHLOROETHENE (PPS) 0.0 0,0 O.0 O.0 0.0 0.O 5TX (Benzene, Toluene & Xylen~) ~PPBI 0.0 O.0 O.O 0.0 0.9 0.O t'OTAL COUFORMS (colo~ll00 mr) 15000 75 1420 2 0 0 HETEROTROPHIC PLATE COUNT (cof,ll00 mlI 1300O 100 4OOO 1700 0 5 ~'ECAL COLIFORMS I~olonku/100 ml~ 1640 10 240 =ECAL STREPTOCOCCI (colonies/100 ml) 11000 45 500 



 

TABLE XII EXTRACTS FROM "I'ABLES IV-C AND V 20 Year Period, 1976 to 1995 Inclusive Maximum, Minimum, and Average Amount of Water Treated Per Day (M.G. per 24 Hours) 
CARROL~ FON ALGIERS YEAR MAX. MIN. AVG. MAX. MIN. AVG. 1976 144.50 98.20 122.70 12.21 7.00 9.38 1977 170.40 101.70 127.10 13.00 7.00 9.61 1978 144.90 108.10 126.30 12.08 8.00 9.86 1979 165.70 112.60 132.40 13.63 8.00 10.54 1980 166.80 118.30 137.10 13.50 8.00 10.09 1981 164.50 121.70 140.50 13.00 8.13 10.71 1982 216.40 118.30 133.80 15.68 9.25 11.07 1983 231.70 107.60 128.30 15.00 8.50 11.02 1984 166.71 113.08 130.37 15.42 9.50 11.07 1985 210.04 99.75 124.08 14.96 8.54 10.49 1986 175.77 89.12 121.50 13.71 8.04 10.29 1987 137.63 95.08 116.42 13.46 7.45 10.42 1988 146.38 94.71 118.38 13.71 8.34 10.19 1989 240.00 93.83 119.54 18.75 7.00 9.80 1990 162.50 100.46 119.61 14.78 8.00 10.46 1991 133.29 98.92 114.79 12.50 8.00 9.60 1992 139.00 97.00 115.22 13.88 8.00 9.88 1993 140.38 103.25 117.41 15.42 7.62 10.18 1994 128.88 103.88 113.71 17.00 8.00 11.47 1995 142.83 104.67 121.40 18.14 9.00 11.55 



 

TABLE xln Monthly Temperature (Degrees Farenheit) of the Mississippi River Water at the Carrollton Plant MONTH 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 )ANUARY 3B 41 39 45 40 40 39 37 35 40 :EBRUARY 42 42 39 43 46 41 41 38 36 38 ~ARCH 47 48 45 45 51 47 47 38 42 43 =,PRIL 58 54 57 55 55 56 52 48 53 55 VIAY 68 72 67 65 65 B5 63 60 JUNE 75 80 75 73 72 75 72 7't 71 77 JULY 82 80 81 78 79 79 78 76 77 82 ~UGUST 83 84 83 81 80 80 77 76 77 85 3EPTEMBER 79 80 80 80 80 78 74 75 76 84 )CTOBER 69 68 71 66 69 67 64 62 66 73 ~OVEMBER 58 59 61 5B 57 53 54 51 57 60 )ECEMBER 45 49 47 52 50 45 41 41 46 50 VIAXlMUM 86 90 87 85 85 88 81 80 80 88 VIINIMUM 36 40 35 36 36 38 36 35 32 36 ~VERAGE 62 63 65 62 62 61 59 56 58 62 
Ten-Year Period Maximum 90 Minimum 32 Average 61 
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DEPARTMENT OF NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT - 1995 
WATER MAINS LAID DURING 1995 QUANTITIES MEASURED IN FEET 
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DEPARTMENT OF NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT - 1995 SEWER TABULATION NO. 1 SEWERS BUILT DURING 1995 
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ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT: Cost to Process a Miscellaneous Invoice Cost to Process a Vendor Invoice Cost to Process a Paycheck $ 8.23 $ 8.76 $ o.'~9 INFORMATION SYSTEMS: Cost to Archive a Document in Records & Data Management $ 0.26 Cost to Retrieve a Microfiched Customer Account in Records & Data Management $ 1.21 PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT: Cost to Mire an Employee PURCHASING DEPARTMENT: Cost to Produce a Sundry Purchase Order REVENUE DEPARTMENT: Cost to Read a Meter Cost to Render a Bill (Less Meter Reading) COST TO PURIFY A MILLION GALLONS OF WATER: Carrollton Operation Algiers Operation 
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$385.31 
$ 16.94 $ 0.34 $ o.3s 
$ 98.47 $258.03 



Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans. LA 70139-3599 

March 29, 1996 
Board of Directors Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans 625 St. Joseph Street New Orleans, Louisiana 70165 Dear Members of the Board We have audited the combined and individual fund financial statements of the Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans (the Board) for the year ended December 31, 1995, and have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 1996. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Board, we considered internal control in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control. We have not considered internal control since the date of our report. During our audit we noted certain matters involving internal control and other operational matters that are presented for your consideration. These comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate members of management, are intended to improve internal control or result in other operating efflciencies and are summarized in the attached Appendix A. Appendix B provides a status of prior year management letter comments. Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements and, therefore, may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures that may exist. We aim, however, to use our knowledge of the Board's organization gained during our work to make comments and suggestions that we hope will be useful to you. This report is intended solely for the management and the Legislative Auditor. public record and its distribution is not information and use of the Board, However, this report is a matter of limited. Very truly yours 



Petty Cash Accounts Appendix A 
The Board has several petty cash accounts ranging in amounts from $50 to $20,000. TO ensure the proper petty cash documentation and transactions, periodic reviews should be conductedby the accounting department of the bank statements and reconciling items for these petty cash accounts. Quarterly, copies of bank statements should be forwarded by the respective departments to accounting for review and verification. Inve atmutnt a The investments of the enterprise fund are under the control of the Investment Coordinator. The Coordinator makes investment decisionsr reviews collateral requirements, initiates the purchases or sales of investments, and receives the safekeeping notices from the banks. Any differences are investigated by the Coordinator. For the pension trust fund, the Coordinator deposits contributions and transfers funds for payroll and refund disbursements. With the changes in the financial systems, previous checks and balances in this area have been reduced. To better protect its Coordinator, as well as to maintain adequate controls, management should review the current processes and modify procedures to maximize safeguard and detection controls. Receivables The Board has a substantial amount of miscellaneous receivables. While bills are being issued regularly, collection efforts should be reviewed to better ensure the timeliness of payments. Internal reporting of the aging and composition of these receivables to the Finance Administrator should also be performed. New Finmncial Systems The management of the Board has successfully installed two new major systems in the last twelve months implemented in the next few efforts to maximize its usage budget and financial reports. 

While other phases to the systems will be monthst we encourage and support managementts of the new system, particularly in generating 
Federal Funds The management of the Board anticipates receiving substantial federal financial assistance in 1996 and subsequent years. The establishment of a grant accountant and the attendance of employees at specific training sentinars reflects the proactiveness of management and these efforts are commended. AS part of these efforts, the Board should also review and update policies and procedures as appropriate, and compile the necessary policies end procedures in one central location. 



Management Response 
Procedures should be Concur Implemented established to ensure that all bank recon- ciliations are performed timely and to ensure that these reconciliations are reviewed by a supervisor. Outstanding reconciling items should be cleared within reasonable period a~d mispostings should be corrected irm~ediately. By strengthening its existing procedures, the Board will be batter assured that cash activity has been accounted for and agreed to the general ledger, that any unusual items have been identified and are being addressed and that such review and agreement is being per- formed in a timely matter. 
The Board has a Pension Concur Implemented Committee which meets monthly to address pen- sion related issues. The accounting for the pen- sion fund is performed by personnel in the Account- ing Department. The Board uses trustees to administer its invest- ments and to provide monthly trustee state- ments reflecting all activity and the market values of its invest- ments. 

APPendix B 
Comment Disposition 
Procedures were changed as necessary in 1995 . Bank reconciliations are being timely performed. 

Procedures are established. 



Appendix R. c~nt 

TO better ensure that the investment transactions are recorded correctly, procedures should be developed whereby the trustees i confirmations of investment activity are reviewed and agreed to the information in the trustees' statements. In addition, periodic recalculations of invest- ment earnings and dividends should be performed to determine the reasonableness of the cash activity. By strengthening its review process, the Board will be better assured that investment activity is being properly recorded. 

Management ~esoonse 

The Board is self-insured Concur Implemented in several areas . Assessments of the adequacy of the liabili- ties and review of pro- visions are typically made only at year-end. TO better monitor the provision requirements, these assessments should be made at least quarterly to deternuine if additional liabilities are necessary Quarterly reports should be forwarded to the Accounting Department to assess the need for 

Comment Disposition 

With the comple- tion of the implementation of the new general ledger system, the flow and frequency of data from other areas is being reviewed. 



increased reserves re- lated to claims. By reviewing amount s quarterly, cash flow needs related to claims can be better assessed and the financial data on the general ledger will be more accurate. 

Management Resnonse Status 

During the course of the Concur Implemented audit, we noted that a large adjustment was made to inventory general ledger accounts to reflect the results of the actual inventory count. Procedures should be developed whereby poten- tial large adjustments are investigated before being recorded. The Accounting Department should be notified of the potential adjustment and the reason for the adjustment. In addition, consideration should be given to having an accountant assist at Central Yard. An accounting person could reconcile the detailed inventory to the general ledger and review the compilation of the inventory totals and adjustments. In addition, in a review of the inventory pro- cedures at Central Yard, we noted that all of the records are manually 

Comment Disncsition 

NO large dis- crepancies have occurred in the past year. Inventory records will be automated as additional phases of the new general ledger system are imp- lement ed. 



maintained and updated. With the advances in current technology and with the Board's imple/nentation of its new financial management systemt consideration should be given to automating and inter- facing the inventory system with the new financial system. 

Management ~eBDonBe 

AS noted above, the Board Concur Implemented is implementing a new financial management system in 1996. During this process, considera- tion should be given to automating manual functions, as well as placing an accounting influence in various departments that will interface or have sig- nificant impact On the new financial management system. For example, placing an accountant in the Cashier' S Department would aid in the reconciliation of daily deposits posted to the general ledger and to the renittance processor, in ensuring the recharging of accounts, recon- ciling NSF checks, overages and underages in balancing, and reviewing fund distributions. Fixed A,s~ ~r~ct We understand that the Concur In-progress Board has recently completed Phase I of its 

Cormment Disposition 

The autormation of various areas is being coordinated with the new system. In addition, per- sonnel have been reorganized as appropriate. 

Procedures have been initiated to complete the process. 



records. Because of the future receipt by the Board of federal funds and to be in compliance with state requirements, we recommend that the Board initiate the next phase of the project. As required by State Law, fixed asset records should be maintained for land, buildings, other improvements, equipment, and other similar items and shall include information such as the date of purchase, initial cost (or an estimate thereof), dispositions, the purpose of dispo- sition, recipient of the disposed property, serial numbers, location, depre- ciable life, accumulated depreciation and other related data. 

Management ~esponse Status Comment Disposition 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

March 29, 1996 
The Members of the Sewerage and Water Finance Conunittee Board of New Orleans 

Sewerage and Water 31, 1995, and have generally accepted information related This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management and should not be used for any other purpose. 



SE~RAGI~ & WATER BOARD OF NZW OI~EJ~IS DECEMBER 31, 1995 
Our Responsibility Under ~narally Accepted Auditing Standards Our responsibility under generally accepted auditing standards is to express an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans (the Board) and the individual fund financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 based on our audit. In carrying out this responsibility, we assessed the risk that the financial statements may contain a material ~sstatement, either intentional or unintentional, and designed and conducted our audit to provide reasonable, not absolutet assurance of detecting misstatements that are nuaterial to the financial statements. In addition, we considered the internal control structure of the Board to gain a basic understanding of the accounting system in order to design an effective and ~fficient audit approach, although not for the purpose of providing specific assurance on the internal control structure. Significant Accounting Policies The significant accounting policies used by the Board are described in the "Sunuuary of Significant Accounting Policies" note to the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the Board during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. Management Judgments and Accounting Estiz~ates Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based upon mansge~uent's current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of the significance of the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management's current judgments. We considered the calculation of claim provisions and liabilities to be estimates that are significant due to the amount of n~anagement's estimate. Based on the testwork performed, we conclude that raanagement's estimate appears reasonable at Decend~er 31, 1995. Signlficant Audit Adjust~ents We proposed no significant audit adjustments to the financial statements that could, in our judgment, either individually or in the aggregate, have a significant effect on the Board's financial reporting process. We have recorded several entries, provision for claims, provision for doubtful accounts, etc., which are entries consistent with the prior year. 



Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the Board's financial statements and our report thereon does not extend beyond the financial information identified in our report, and we have no obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other information contained in these documents. We have read the other information included in the Board's annual report and noted no matters that came to our attention that could cause us to believe that such information, or its manner of presentation, was materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation, appearing in the financial statements. Disagreements With Management There were no disagreements with management on financial accounting and reporting matters which, if not satisfactorily resolved, would have caused a modification of our report on the Board's 1995 financial statements. Consultation With Other Aocountam~e To the best of our knowledge, manage~ner~ has not consulted with or obtained an opinion, written or oral, from other independent accountants during the past year which were subject to the requir~nts of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 50, "Reporting on the Application of Accounting Principles." ~jcr Issues Discussed With ~nag~nt Prior to Retention There have been no major issues discussed with management prior to our retention as your auditors. Difficulties Encountered in Perfoz~ing the Audit We encountered no difficulties in dealing with nuanagem~nt in performing our audit. Total Fees We have met the terms of our agre~ent with you regarding the sharing of fees between our firms. 



Sewerage and Water 
Board of New Orleans ~ r" New Orleans, Louisiana "~ ~ m c2_ 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS 

Year ended December 31, 1995 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
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KPMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3,599 

Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary 
Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans: We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1995, and have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 1996. These financial statements arc the responsibility of the Board's managemem. Our responsibRity is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

March 29, 1996 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance For the year cnd~cl December 31, 1995 
CFDA Program Rcvcnucs/ Number Expenditures 
83.516 $ 29___11,614 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS Notes to Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance 

3 

4 

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is descrilxxl in Note 1 to the Board's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 1995. 
Federal financial assistance revenues are reported in the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans's general purpose financial statements as follows: Oth~T I~VC~IUC Less non-Federal revenue $ 2,091,070 1.799.456 Total Federal financial assistance $ 29___~1,614 
Amounts reported in the Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance agree with the amounts reported in the related federal financial reports, except for the amounts in reports submitted as of a date subsequent to December 31, 1995. 



KPMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance 
Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans: 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the year ended December report thereon dated March 29, 1996. and Water Board of and have issued our 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported herein under Government Auclitin~ Standards. This report is intended for the information of management, the Board, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office, and the Federal Emergency Management Agency. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

March 29, 1996 



KPMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans. LA 70139-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report on the Intemal Control Structure 
Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans: 
We have audited the financial statemc~ats of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1995, and have issued our repon thereon dated March 29, 1996. 



the design or operation of one or more of the internal conlrol structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the interns1 control structure and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. We also noted other matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we have reported to the management of the Board in a separate letter dated March 29, 1996. This mpon is intended for the information of management, the Board, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office, and the Federal Emerg(mcy Man~emem Agency. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limitecL 
March 29, 1996 



KPMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, I~ 70139-3599 

Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans: 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1995, and have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 1996. 

Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management and Budget's Comp]iane~ Supplement for Sin~e Audit~ of State and Local Governments. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of wlfich is the expression of an opinion on the Board's compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the second paragraph of this report. With respect to the items not tested, nothing came to our attention ttmt caused us to believe that the Board had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. This report is intended for the information of management, the Board, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office, and the Federal Emergency Management Agency. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribntion is not limited. 

March 29, 1996 



Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Structure used in Administering the Federal Financial Assistance Programs 
Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans: 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1995, and have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 1996. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local G0vemment8. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. 



For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control and procedures used in administering the federal financial assistance program categories: 
Payro]l 
General requirements: Political activity Civil rights Cash management Federal financial reports - Allowable costs/cost principles Dmg-free woflcplaee Administrative requirements - Specific requirements: Types of services allowed or unallowed Matching Reporting Special Requireracnts - Claims for Reimbursements 

structure policies in the following 

For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant pohcies and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk. During the year ended December 31, 1995, the Board had no major federal financial assistance programs and expended 100 percent of its total federal financial assistance under the nonmajor program, Federal Emergency Management Agency Disaster Assistance Program. We performed tests of controls, as required by OMB Circular A-128, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of internal control sU'ucture policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing or detecting malmial noncompliance with specific requirements, general requirementS, and requirements governing claims for reimbursements that are applicable to the aforementioned nonmajor program. Our procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these internal control structure policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Our consideration of the internal control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal financial assistance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might constitute material weaknesses under standards established by,the American Institute of Certified Public AccountantS. A material wealmess is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elementS does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and regulations that would be mi~erial to a federal financial assistance program may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control structure and itS operations that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. 



March 29, 1996 
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KPMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Specific Requirements Applicable to 
Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans: 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1995, and have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 1996. 

This report is intended for the information of managemeaat, the Board, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office, and the Federal Emergency Management Agency. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
March 29, 1996 
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